
SOUTHERN PINES APPEARANCE COMMISSION MINUTES 
Regular Meeting 

September 27, 2016 
 
 

Present:             Carol Haney, Birtha Shaw, Teresa Lenahan, Jeff Kelly, Penelope Ham, and Sean McCormick 
 

Staff Present: Debra Fisher, Adam Lindsay, Jack Taylor, and Chris Kennedy 
 
Carol Haney asked if minutes had been read.  Penelope Ham made a motion to approve, Birtha Shaw 
seconded to approve the minutes from August 23, 2016. 
 
Landscape/Trees/Planters 
 
Tree Concerns/Update/Pots: Teresa Lenahan commented that all of the pots except for the two (2) at the 
train station will be removed.  Carol Haney stated that the Appearance Commission had received a $200 
donation from the Civic Club for two (2) new pots at the Train Station.  Adam Lindsay inquired as to 
whether we had considered any techniques to prevent vandalism or theft of the new pots.  Jack Taylor 
stated that one option could include a single bolt thru the bottom of the pots and then through the 
concrete on which the pots sit to help secure them for both vandalism and safety concerns.  Teresa 
Lenahan stated that one tree removal permit was received since the last meeting.  
 
Tree Fund:  Adam Lindsay stated that he did not have any new information regarding the tree fund and 
he is not in receipt of any donations at this time.  Carol Haney stated she would let everyone know to 
make their donations payable to the Town of Southern Pines stating that it is for the tree memorial and 
to give any checks to Chris Kennedy at the Planning Office located at 180 SW Broad Street in Southern 
Pines.  
 
General Appearance 
 
Adopt-A-Street:  Birtha Shaw stated that she had no new sign-ups for the adopt-a-street program. Adam 
Lindsay stated that the Appearance Commission has a dedicated page on the Town website that could be 
useful for promoting the program. 
 
Building and Property Improvements:  Birtha Shaw stated that she had no new updates.  Adam Lindsay 
commented that the Town Code Enforcement Officer is retiring and asked the Appearance Commission 
to be patient with the Town relative to any relayed concerns with code enforcement during this time until 
a replacement is selected and trained.  
 
Review new applications for Appearance Commission:  Carol Haney stated that she will invite the two 
(2) interested applicants to a future Appearance Commission meeting. 
 
Christmas:  Penelope Ham stated that five (5) wreaths and twelve (12) bows are to be ordered, and three 
(3) new electric outlets are to be installed.  Adam Lindsay asked that the Appearance Commission to 
update their map depicting the locations of the trees and wreaths.  Penelope Ham stated that she was 
sending the Southern Pines Business Association a letter stating that the trees must be decorated by 
December 1st or the trees would be picked up and donated to a charity. 



Appearance Commission Christmas tree:  Carol Haney stated that the Appearance Commission’s 
Christmas tree will be at the same location this year (in front of the Town Administration Building) and 
would like for the Appearance Commission to meet on December 1st to decorate the tree.   
 
Mayor’s Lighting Project:  Sean McCormick stated that he has conducted research into down-lighting that 
may prove to be a better option to prevent theft and vandalism.  The down-lighting option has the same 
effect as up-lighting and the down-lighting examples include LED bulbs so the efficiency and the cost to 
operate the down-lighting would be lower than traditional bulbs. Sean McCormick stated he would 
identify the trees to be designated for the down-lighting and he would then formulate the cost of installing 
the lights.  Chris Kennedy suggested that the Appearance Commission find pictures of comparable trees 
to the trees in downtown Southern Pines, in terms of species and size, with the down-lighting to better 
represent the proposal when the item is presented to the Town Council. 
 
Greenhouse Long Range Plan:  Teresa Lenahan contended that a greenhouse could save the Town money 
by being able to plant seeds for their spring plantings instead of purchasing plant material each season.  
Adam Lindsay inquired to the cost of purchasing plant material each season versus the maintenance of a 
greenhouse.  Jack Taylor stated that a 20’ X 35’ greenhouse with heat would cost approximately $14,000.  
He continued by stating that the same size greenhouse with heat and a cooler could cost an additional 
$3,000; and it would need to be maintained every day.  Chris Kennedy stated the concept of a greenhouse 
could be a goal for the long range plan that the Appearance Commission is seeking to create and adopt.  
For the long range goals, think about what the Appearance Commission wants to accomplish in the next 
five (5) to ten (10) years.  A long range goal may be something as big as a greenhouse or as small as having 
a GIS layer for the Christmas trees and wreathes.  
 
Tree Walk:  Teresa Lenahan stated that the tree walk for the trees downtown will be on Friday October 
7th. 
 
Public Relations 
 
Updates:  Penelope Ham stated that she had no new updates. 
 
Adjournment: Teresa Lenahan motioned and Penelope Ham seconded. 
 
The next meeting will be at 1:00pm on October 25, 2016 
 
Submitted by: 
Debra Fisher 
Town of Southern Pines 


